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The building, of local pressed red brick and native sandstone, 
was approximately sixty-seven feet square. It consisted of two 
floors over a full basement. The main entrance, on the first floor 
revel, was on the south. On the northwest corner a stone stairway 
also led to the first floor level. An outside sub-ground level 
stairway under the main south entrance served the basement. The 
basement was eight feet above ground, four feet below. The structure 
was covered by a gabled roof, topped by a belfry and bell, a ventilation 
tower, and two chimneys. Gutters and downspouts drained the roof*

The structure contained sixteen rooms. In the basement was the 
chemistry laboratory, chemistry classroom, the gas machine, various 
storerooms, and the furnace room. The first floor contained two 
classrooms, a reception room, the college library room, and the 
administration offices. The second floor housed two classrooms, two 
apparatus rooms, the College Assembly Hall, and a storeroom. The 
Assembly Hall was forty by fifty feet in size. Interior stairways 
served the basement, the second floor, the attic space, and belfry. 
A narrow hallway ran north and south through the basement. A wide 
hallway ran north and south through the first floor. The rooms on 
the second floor fronted on the Assembly Hall. The building had a 
central hot water heating system served by a boiler located in the 
basement.

Old Central's exterior is basically unaltered. The only changes 
are the removal of the exterior portion of the main chimney, the small 
wooden bannister railings in the belfry, and the metal ridgepole 
ornamentation on the roof. Even the guttering and downspout system 
serving the roof remains completely intact. All window and door 
openings are as they were at the time of construction.

The building's interior is also basically unaltered. Virtually 
all original partitions, door jambs, and doors remain. Several of 
the large original rooms on each floor have been divided with tem- 
orary partitions; the original woodwork, including the wainscoting, 
remains undisturbed, however. Even the original fireplace and mantle 
in the President's office remains unchanged and is still functional. 
The structure is centrally heated with hot water, as in the beginning, 
but it is connected with the university power plant system at present. 
The building is now centrally cooled during the summer. It is served 
by a modern fire protection sprinkler system.
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Old Central was the first permanent building on the campus 
of present Oklahoma State University* the land-grant institution 
of the statee It was dedicated June 15, 1894, and called the 
College Building - the pride of students and townspeople alike. For 
three years prior to its erection the college had rented quarters 
in town for instruction, used temporary frame buildings on the 
institution's 200-aore site, donated by Stillwater homesteaders, 
for its Agricultural Experiment Station work.

Stillwater people raised the 110,000 required to capture the 
Oklahoma Territory land-grant college, invested it in construction 
of Old Central to insure the institution's permanent location. As 
the building cost but |14,948, it was largely Stillwater f s creation, 
which tended to lessen the likelihood the town, though twenty miles 
from a railroad, would lose the college. This extra security was 
appreciated Sept. 16, 1893, when opening to settlement of the 
Cherokee Outlet drained the town of half its population - and the 
most advanced college class half its students. Fortunately, the 
contract for Old Central had been let on June 30 of that same year. 
Many of the first students worked their way through school in part 
by helping with the construction.

The structure has served faithfully a multitude of land-grant 
educational purposes during its long life. It was the answer to 
the hopes of the first students for a permanent building. It is 
the only landmark on the campus known to all the institution's 
thousands of graduates. Oklahoma Territory's first college 
graduates were educated primarily in it. Showing what the insti­ 
tution was like in the beginning, it is the one campus structure 
that ties the university to its past. Nothing else illustrates so 
well the growth of its physical plant, for it started the university's 
extensive building program. It early became the physical symbol of 
the university. Yet more than bricks and mortar, Old Central re­ 
flects the very spirit and soul of the institution.

Originally Old Central housed the administration offices, the 
library, and components of all departments. For some years the 
Assembly Hall was used for all commencement exercises and most 
other programs of the college. A number of academic departments
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Old Central

and student services have been housed in the structure over the years. 
Only recently, because of new construction, has the need for these 
traditional uses of Old Central diminished* Present plans are to 
completely rehabilitate, restore, furnish, and equip the structure to 
its condition at time of dedication in 1894* A museum portraying the 
history of Oklahoma State University will be housed in several of the 
large classrooms* The remainder of the building will display the 
institution's restored educational facilities and equipment housed in 
its original permanent setting.
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